
Ganton City Council
Ju|y12,2023-6pm

Regular Meeting Agenda

L

2.

3.

4.

Call to order
Pledge of Allegiance
Approval of agenda
Consent agenda

a) Approval of June 14,2023 Regular Meeting Minutes
b) Approval of July Disbursements

Public comments
Reports

a) Mayor
b) Clerk & Deputy Clerk
c) Public Works
d) Fire Department
e) Police
f) Planning Commission
g) Other

Old business
a) Review and discuss wording suggestions on ordinance section 71.09
b) Discuss next steps for ordinance violations

8. New business
a) Discuss cannabinoid/THc ordinance adopted by Fillmore county
b) Request from Jamie Kelly to utilize the Town Hallfree of charge for Hunter Safety Class

9. Adjourn

Upcoming Dates:

Regular City Council Meeting at 6 p.m August 9

5.
b,

7



Canton City Council Regular Meeting Minutes
June t4,2023

Members present: Josh Nordsving, Jen Dowling, Jason Magnuson, Kristy Ziegler, Randy Gossman
Members absent:

City staff present: Anne Koliha, Barb Kerns, Jon Nordsving
City staff absent: Jim Davis

Visitor(s) present: Melissa Vanderplas (FC Journal)

Mayor Nordsving called the regular meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

Motion by Ziegler, seconded by Gossman to approve the agenda, motion carried.

Consent Agenda

Motion by Dowling, seconded by Gossman to approve the consent agenda:
a) Approval of May L0,2023 Regular Meeting Minutes
b) Approval of June Disbursement

Public comments: none

Reports:

Mayor Nordsving: Josh Nordsving gave update on needing to update lighting at ballfield - Koliha stated
updates with new bulbs has been completed so ballfield is good to go; brief update on L poppe zoning
issue

Deputy Clerk: Kerns reported on the Park shelter work has been completed and she will work on
reporting to the Arlin Falck Foundation on the grant funds utilized for this project; Kerns also noted the
disconnect notices will not be being placed at residents anymore since have had issues so they will be
placed directly in the mailwith the utility bill

Clerk: Continued work on updates to Cod of Ordinances, wrote ordinance violation letters as necessary,
Continued work on Zoning issues, Met with Scott Hanson from MDH to review wellhead protection plan
and begin work on amendment, will be starting to work on budget for2024 asked for any larger items to
budget for in 2024, reminder of recycling day this Saturday June L7

Public Works: Jon Nordsving reported on going to have to start to work on a lead and copper survey
that will need to be completed by fall of 2024

Fire Department: Magnuson reported on big fix to pumper fire truck

Police: none

Planning Commission: Josh Nordsving reviewed the land use application for Lori Hudson



Old Business

a) Review and discuss wording suggestions on portions of ordinances
Magnuson reviewed his suggestions on wording for sections in Ordinance Chapters 70 &71.
Council discussed thoughts and suggestions for changes. Council advised Clerk Koliha to work on
wording in 71.09 with the suggestions from Council.

b) Consider Resolution 2o23-og approving and adopting an updated Personnel policy handbook
Motion by Gossman, seconded by Dowling to approve Resolution 2023-Og adopting an updated
Personnel Policy handbook. Motion carried.

New Business

a) Consider temporary closure of Main Street Closure on August 19 for Canton Day Off event
Motion by Gossman, seconded by Magnuson to approve the temporary closure of Main Street
on August 19 for Canton Day Off event. Motion carried.

b) consider temporary closure of streets for canton Day off, August rg-zo, zo23
Motion by Gossman, seconded by Ziegler to approve temporary closure of streets for Canton
Day Off, August 78-20,2023. Motion carried.

c) Consider land use permit application for Lori Hudson
Motion by Ziegler, seconded by Dowling to approve the land use permit application for Lori
Hudson. Motion carried.

d) Consider approval of temporary liquor license application for the Canton American Legion for
August L8-2O,2023
Motion by Gossman, seconded by Magnuson to approve the temporary liquor license
application for the Canton American Legion for August 18-20,2023. Motion carried.

Motion by Gossman, seconded by Dowling to adjourn the meeting at 6:55 p.m.; motion carried



General Fund
Acentek

Canon Financial*
MiEnergy

MiEnergy

MiEnergy

MiEnergy

MiEnergy

MiEnergy

MN Energy Resources

MN Energy Resources

MN Energy Resources

Nordsving, Jon

Tri-State Business Machines
Wright Way Computers
Nethercut Schieber Attorneys
Fire Safety USA

League of Minnesota Cities
Fillmore County Assessor's

USPS

Village Farm & Home
Total General Fund Disbursements

MiEnergy
Total Mitson Disbursements

Acentek

Gopher State One Call

MiEnergy
USA Bluebook
Total Water Disbursements

Acentek
MiEnergy
Utility Consultants
Total Sewer Disbursements

Richard's Sanitation
Total Garbage Disbursements

Acentek
MiEnergy

MiEnergy
MN Energy Resources

Fire Safety USA

Total Fire Department Disbursements

Julv 2023 Disbursements

220.6L

44.00
Phone & lnternet Services (City Hall/Town Hall)
Copier monthly lease contract
Electric: City Hall

Electric: Town Hall

Electric: Bus Shed

Electric: Street Lights

Electric: Welcome Sign

Electric: Ball Field

Gas; City Hall

Gas: Maintenance Shop

Gas: Town Hall

Cell phone stipend
Copier monthly contract
Monthly computer services

June billing
fire extinguisher inspections & certifications
Workers' Compensation Coverage Premium
2023 Assessment work
PO Box Service Fee (12 months)
supplies

Electric: Mitson House

s

s

s

s

s
s
s
s
s

s
s
s

s
s

$

25.67

25.67

69.47
50.00
56.34
4L.57

225.OO

100.00
2,292.OO

1,280.00
94.00

65.18
4,589.s1

s

39.58 Phone dialer system
Locates

Electric: Pump House
107.45 ball valve repairs
147.03

39.58 Phone: WWTF

Electric: WWTF

216.17 Samples

255.75

$ Z,sl\.gl Monthly service charge

5 2,913.97

$ e+.gs

5 zs.at
S 1,s88.7s

$ t,slg.tl

s

$

s
$

lnterenet services

Electric: Fire Hall

Electric: Cooler
Gas: Fire Hall
pumper truck annual maintenance inspection

Mccabe Electric
Village Farm & Home
Total Ballfield & park Disbursements

861.81 Park shelter electrical upgrade (Arlin Falck Crant 5)
51.15 Park shelter paint (Arlin Falck Grant 5)

9L2.96

s
s
s

Total Monthlv Disbursements S g,gSg.Sg



GENERAL FUND

2023 Ending 1st Half (Jan-June) Balance S 163,747.50

2023 Beginning Balance

Receipts

Disbursements

EXPENDITURES

Wages: Admin Staff
Wages: Maintenance Staff
Council Wages

PERA

FICA

lnsurance

Office Supplies

Operating Supplies

Repair/Maint: Buildings

Repair/Maint: Streets

Street Maint Materials
Equipment (sm tools/machinery)

Professional Services

Communications

Tra nsportation/Travel
Miscellaneous

Donations
Awards & Recognition

Summer Rec

City Fire Protection

Ambulance

Police Department

Electric Utilities

Gas Utilities
Park/Rec Supplies

Park/Rec Equipment

Grant Funds (Pass-thru)

TOTAT EXPENDITURES

REVENUE

Property Taxes

Local Government Aid

Other Aid

Fines/Forefeits

Licenses/Permit

Rentals

Reimbursements
Refunds/Overpayments
Miscellaneous

I nterest

Grant Funds (Pass-thru)

TOTAL REVENUES

3,800.00

S 2z3,goo.oo S rsr,gss.rg ss.o%

2023 Budeet 2023 Jan-June

S tto,ogo.gs

S 194,867.56

S 135,051.51

5 166,!71.s7

35,000.00

51,000.00

4,300.00

6,200.00

6,600.00

19,000.00

4,000.00

8,000.00

21,000.00

7,000.00

8,000.00
15,000.00

21,000.00

5,500.00

500.00

1,s00.00

500.00

1,000.00

3,220.00

5,270.OO

3,410.00

24,960.00

11,000.00

6,000.00

1,000.00

3,000.00

18,601.61

27,798.25

3,349.93

3,549.53

15,584.00

1,294.72

3,489.45

18,364,05

1,609.51

% of Budget

53.0%

54.0%

o.o%

54.0%

53.7%

82.0o/o

32.4%

43.6%

87/%
0.o%

20.Lo/o

o.o%

75.0%

47.7%

26.2%

15.2%

20.o%

8.0%

t00.o%

too.o%

0.0o/o

7t.2o/o

4ts%
68.7%

0.0%

0.0%

68.s%

o.0%

o.o%

40.0%

34.5%

50.0%

7ro.o%

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

$

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

$

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

15,810.05

2,623.39

131.00

228.OO

100.00

80.00

3,220.00

5,270.00

t7,760.00

4,569.O4

4,r23.60

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

s

S

169,505.04

97,566.00

8,000.00

500.00

2,000.00

1,800.00

1,400.00

200.00

689.95

900.00

1,545.66

1,365.59

420.50

2,881.03

3,800.00

5 zgo,ttt.oq 45.6%



WATER FUND SEWER FUND
2023 Beginning Balance

Receipts

Disbursements

OPERATING EXPENDITURES

Wages: Admin Staff
Wages: Maintenance Staff

PERA

FICA

Office Supplies

Operating Supplies

Repair/Maint.

Engineering Fees

Communications
lnsurance (Property & Liability)
Miscellaneous

Electric Utilities

TOTAT OPERATING EXPENDITURES

NON-OPERATING EXPENDITURES

Debt Service Bond Principal 5

Debt Service Bond lnterst S

TOTAL NON.OPERATING EXPENDITURES S

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

OPERATING REVENUE

Sewer Sales

Sewer Penalty

Misc. Revenue

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

s 100,028.00 s 42,829.76 42.8%

2023 Ending 1st Half (Jan-June) Balance S 148,018.68

2023 Beginning Balance

Receipts

Disbursements

OPERATING EXPENDITURES

Wages: Admin Staff
Wages: Maintenance Staff
PERA

FICA

Office Supplies

Operating Supplies

Repair/Maint.

Engineering Fees

Communications

lnsurance (Property)

Miscellaneous

Electric Utilities

TOTAT EXPENDITURES

NON.OPERATING EXPENDITURES

Debt Service Bond Principal

Debt Service Bond lnterst
TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENDITURES

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

OPERATING REVENUE

Water Sales

Water Connection/Penalty

Misc. Revenue

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

5 733,427.77

5 5s,997.s3

5 41,406.62

2023 Budeet 2023 Jan-June % of Budget
12,000.00

17,000.00

1,600.00

2,200.oo

2,000.00

2,000.00

10,000.00

700.00

900.00

2,000.00

8,000.00

s s8.400.00

S

s

s

ro,894.76

84,989.63

42,829.76

11,500.00

22,000.00

2,000.00

2,3s0.00

2,000.00

8,000.00

15,000.00

700.00

4800.00
1,000.00

11,000.00

S 8o,3so.oo

2023 Ending 1st Half (Jan-June) Balance S 53,054.63

2023 Jan-June2023 Budset To ol Budset

s
)
s

s

S

s

s

s

s

s

s
s
c

s

s

s

s

s
)
s

s

s

S

s

s

5

s

s

s

s
)
s

5

s

s

s

s

5 s,gzs.zs

S g,zag.o+

S sao.gL

S r,ro:.4+
S r+s.ss

S ag+.os

5 1,s69.96

5 r,ago.oo

S zu.zs
S 9o2.oo

S orz.so

S g,oz+.go

s 26,836.87

49.8%

54.O%

55.O%

53.O%

7.3%

44.7%

15.7%

40.6%

700.2%

30.8%

45.9%

46.O%

700.o%

43.O%

95.r%

56.2%

55.O%

s6.o%

5,979.28
rr,735.9L

1,068.53

1,355.25

145.88

4,676.22
4,816.88

238.80

s,L92.OO

634.60
7,046.47

^, 
e)6 ac

42,675-Or

470.99

4r,843.63
o, oao e2

s2.o%

53.O%

53.O%

57.O%

73%
57.7%

32.L%

o.o%

34.r%
108.O%

63.5%

64.r%

53.3%

5 14,000.00

S 1,32s.00

s 1s,32s.00

S 73,72s.oo

s

5

s

14,000.00

569.75

L4,569.75

S 41,,406.62

12,000.00 s
7,678.00 s

19.678.00 s

o.o%

o.o%

o.o%

s6.8%

rr3.o%

S 100,154.00 s4,950.43

r,o47.10

S 1oo,1s4.oo S 55,997.53

s

s

$
C

s

s

*Misc. Revenue = Cash-in & Re-investment of CD's

Sewer CD (cash-in) 527,932.40

Liquor CD (cash-in) 54,027.96
Vail Estate CD (cash-in) 55,889.27
Lift Station payment from Canton Twshp & Fillmore Co 54,000



FIRE DEPARTMENT

2023 EndinB lst Half (Jan-June) Balance S 15,732.88 2023 Ending 1st Half (Jan-June) Balance $ 5,Ua.78

BAttFIEtD/PARK
2023 Beginning Balance 5
Receipts 5
Disbursements S

EXPENDlTURES

Repair/Maint.

Miscellaneous

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

REVENUE

Transfer of Funds

Miscellaneous

Grant Funds

TOTAL REVENUES

MITSON HOUSE
2023 Beginning Balance

Receipts

Disbursements

Expenditures

Wages

PERA

Training
I nsurance

Equipment/Repairs

Supplies/PPE

Fuel

Electric Utilities

Gas Utilities
Communications

Miscellaneous
Total Expenditures

Revenues

Township Services

City Services

Fire Calls

Donations

Grants
Fire Relief Contribution
Training Reimbursement

Total Revenues

S 5,ooo.oo S

s 2,000.00 s
s s00.00 s
s 1,900.00 5

S 4,2so.oo S

S 3,ooo.oo S

S 1,ooo.oo 5

S 1,5oo.oo S

s 1,900.00 s
s e00.00 s

5 s00.00 S

s 33,121.88

5 17,08400

5 9,222.60

L4,907.O0

5,270.00
2,500.00

s,000.00

2,000.00

% of Budget

o.0%

0-o%

o oo/o

r3r.9%
4.50/o

96.7%

36.9%

4t.8%

82.gvo

76.6%

62.4%

39.2%

18,824.93

989 80

4,081.85

2023 Jan-June

5 r,244.34

S 631.00

5 4s.00

5 1,979 60

s 181.91

S 4.081.8s

2,s05.00

192.89
2,908.76

358.9s

659.01
1,575.89

689.70
312.00

2023 Beginning Balance

Receipts

Disbursements

EXPENDITURES

Repair/Maint

Property lnsurance

Miscellaneous

Advertisint
Electric Utilities

TOTAT EXPENDITURES

s
s
s

1r.,009.52

5,360-74

2023 Jan-June

5 s,36O.74

s s,360.74

5 2,677.48

s 2,050.12

5 6,271..92

s 11.0(x).52

2023 Ending 1st Half (lan-June) Balance S 40,983.28

2023 Jan-June2023 Budeet

REVENUE

Misc.

TOTAL REVENUES

989.80

s 989.80

*Miscellaneous Expenditures: Avenue of Flags
+Advertising Expenditures: Historical Site DOT signs
*Miscellaneous Revenue: Historical Society payment for
one of the Historical Site DOT signs

s 23,ss0.00 5 9,222.60

s
s

s
s
s

s
5

s

5

s

s
s
5

s

4,304.0O

s,270.00

1,450.00

500.00
1,450.00

28.gvo

r.00 0%

5a.o%

to.oo/o

o.oo/o

0.0%

*Transfer of Funds: funds left from ballfiedl electrical

upgrade
*Grant Funds: Arlin Falck grant funds received for park

shelter
*Miscellaneous Funds: funds from Wilken CD

4,110.00

S 29,677.@ S 17,084.00 s7.6%



GARBAGE FUND
2023 Beginning Balance

Receipts

Disbursements

s
s

5

(2,348.72)

14,904.23

L4,387.84

2023 Ending 1st Half (Jan-June) Balance S (1,832.33)

EXPENDITURES

Contracted Services

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

REVENUES

Refuse Sales

Refuse Penalty

TOTAL REVENUE

966.16

s 996.70

981,.20

LI.L2

Total

5 ztg.tt 5 14,387.84

5 L4,904.24s

S 14,825.55

2023 Jan-June

s

s

1,4,387.84

L4,387.84

14,738.58

165.65

L4,904.23

S Received

5 Received Penalty

s
s

s

Ga

5 9,747.2L 5 3,454.70

s 10,299.54 s 3,608.00Charged on Utility Billine

Contracted Services Pd

s

5

to,L29.7L

113.19
s 3,551.08 s

s 3e.2s s

s

Waste Tax Totes Fuel Surcha



CD Values

Sewer #16668

Sewer #16659

Wilken Park#44642
Liquor Store #44204
Vail Estate #44203
General #18920

CD Values

o.4s%

s 27,9OO.75 o.45%

S t2,o4s.!o

5 55,469.49

General #I892O

S t o,ooo.oo

s 35,000.00

S 13o,ooo.oo

Sewer #44955
Wilken Park#44642

s

Liquor Store #44957

s

Vail Estate #44955

38,96t.28
135,677.96

4/1,/2023
Current Balance lnterest Rate Term

CD Values

Months) Maturity Date

12

0.25%

2.65%

0.85%

S 27,932.40

S r2,o45.to o.25%

s
130,000.00

s 55,469.49

s 27,932.40Sewer #44955
Wilken Park #45022

2.6s%

Liquor Store #44957

s

Vail Estate #44956

t2

35,000.00

General #I892O

6

7 /t/2o23
Current Balance lnterest Rate Term (Months) Matu

60

3.75%

60

2/7e/2023

50

2/te/2023

3.7s%

4/Le/2023

4.10%

8/Is/2024

o.8s%

7/1,/2023
Current Balance lnterest Rate Term

S 27,9oo.75

Months Maturity Date

22 t2/Le/2024

22

3.75%

4.to%

8/rs/2024

S 55,704.s9

4/1,4/2027

5

22

1,.70%

60

3.75%

4/te/2023
t2/23/2024

o.85%

t2/23/2024
4/1,4/2027

Date

22 t2/ts/2024

22 t2/23/2024

18

22

50

ro/2s/2024
12/23/2024

4/14/2027



Frh,ktT-tHtTE gHUrJ I r

Office of the
FILLMORE COUNTY SHERIFF

JOHN DEGEORGE Sheriff
LANCE BOYUM Chief Deputy

901 Houston St. NW
PRESTON, MN 55965-1080

Tel: 507-765-3874
Emergency Dial 911
Fax: 507-765-2703

Date

To

From

July 1 ,2023

Canton City Council

Jason Harmening, Deputy Sheriff
John DeGeorge, Fillmore County Sheriff

July 2023 Monthly Council Report

Galls for Service / Patrol Activitv:

Re

Reported Date Title Street Name

2023-O4-Or Warrant HUDSON AVE

2023-04-rO Civil MAIN ST

2023-04-tO Civil MAIN ST

2023-04-rO Assist MAIN ST

2023-04-t7 Warrant IDA ST

2023-04-25 Suspicious Activity MAIN ST

2023-04-27 Possession of Stolen Property FILLMORE AVE

2023-04-30 Permit to Purchase Main St S

2023-05-04 Custody Dispute Main St

2023-05-05 Warrant Fillmore Ave

2023-05-09 Theft

2023-05-09 Missing Person HUDSON AVE

2023-05- 10 Theft HWY 52

2023-05- 1 1 Domestic Disturbance HUDSON AVE

2023-O5-L4 Noise Complaint Fillmore Ave

2023-05- 15 Civil 2nd ST

2023-05- 1 5 Disorderly Conduct ASH ST

2023-05-16 Welfare Check HUDSON AVE

2023-O5-24 Parking Complaint FILLMORE AVE

Page 1 of 2



FU*btvruaFE gUHXJ t 
'

Office of the
FILLMORE COUNTY SHERIFF

JOHN DEGEORGE Sheriff
LANCE BOYUM Chief Deputy

901 Houston St. NW
PRESTON, MN 55965-1080

Tel: 507-765-3874
Emergency Dial 911
Fax: 507-765-2703

2023-05-25 Information COUNTY 23

2023-05-27 Funeral Escort MAIN ST

2023-06-01 Information ASH ST

2023-06-05 Warrant MAIN ST

2023-06-07 Identity Theft MAIN ST

2023-06-08 Civil Fillmore Ave

2023-06-09 Juvenile Complaint HUDSON AVE

2023-06-2r Welfare Check MAIN ST

2023-06-22 911 Hang Up 176th ST

2023-06-23 Court Order Violation MAIN ST

2023-06-26 Trespass Complaint ASH ST

2023-06-27 Information ASH ST

2023-06-24 Theft OAK ST

Page 2 of 2



7L.O9 PROHIBITING PARKING AREAS IN FRONT YARDS IN RESIDENTIAL

zoNEs.

(A)The construction, operation or maintaining a parking area, either paved or
unpaved, in the front yard of any lot is prohibited in any area zoned for residential
use. Forthe Purpose of this section, frontyard shall mean and include the area
between the sidewalk, or street line in the event there- is no sidewalk, and the
front line of the principal building, extending in both directions to the side lot
lines.

(B) Use of that portion of a vacant lot within 30 feet of the sidewalk lines for
parking in an area zoned for residential use is prohibited.

(C) Driveways in any area zoned for residential use shall not exceed 25% of the
width at the front or side lot line. Where more than one driveway is desired or
required, they shall be at least 70 feet apart.

(D) The front part of any lot shall not be used for the parking of an Automobile,
Truck, Trailer, Tractor, Recreational Vehicle, Camper; Travel Trailer, Camper Top,
Tent, Wagon, Boat, Boat Trailer, Storage Area or Motor Home for more than 48
hours unless parked in a concrete or well-defined driveway. Recreational vehicles
and campers may be parked in the driveway or back yard of a property owner or
behind the front line of the principal building.

(E) No Person, being the owner or having control of any building, shall violate or
fail to conform to any provision of this section, or fail to obey any lawful order of
an Officer charged with its enforcement. Each and every day on which any person

continues to violate the provisions of this section, after having been notified of
the Violation, shall constitute a separate Offense. This conviction shall not relieve
any person from thereafter complying with the provisions of this section, and shall
be sufficient cause to refuse further building or land use permits to the Offender
until a time as the Orders have been complied with.

Penalty, see'10.99



The Cannabinoid/THC Ordinance passed by Fillmore County that became effective July 1, 2023. This
ordinance covers the entire Fillmore County area and it requires those that are selling "low dose"
Cannabinoid and THC products to have a license to sell within the County since that is legal for the
current statue.

options for the city to consider with the cannabinoid/THC ordinance are:

1) Take no action allowing the county to regulate sale within the city

2) Adopt the same type of ordinance with the city taking over regulation

3) Adopt a more restrictive ordinance than the county with the city regulating



COUNTY OF FILLMORE STATE OF MINNESOTA

ORDINANCE NO. 20230523. CANNABINOID

ORDINANCE REGULATING THE SALE OF HEMP.
DERIVED CANNABINOID PRODUCTS

THE FILLMORE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS HEREBY ORDAIN AS F'OLLOWS:

SECTION 1. ENACTMNNT.
This Ordinance is adopted by the Fillmore County Commissioners for the purpose of

protecting public health and safety by regulating the sale of hemp-derived cannabinoid products
within Fillmore County. The provisions of Minn. Stat. Sec. l5I.72,as they may be amended from
time to time, are hereby adopted by reference and are made a part of this ordinance as if set out in
full.

SECTION 2. PURPOSF', AND TNTENT.
The purpose of this chapter is to regulate the sale of any product that meets the requirements

to be sold as a hemp-derived cannabinoid product under Minn. Stat. $151.72 for the following
reasons:

(a) By enacting 2022 Session Law Chapter 98, Article 13, the Minnesota Legislature
amended Minn. Stat. $ 151 .72 to allow for the sale of hemp-derived cannabinoid
products containing low levels of any type of tetrahydrocannabinol, also known asIITIICI'.

(b) Minn. Stat. Sec. 151.72 does not prohibit counties or municipalities from adopting
and enforcing local ordinances intended to regulate persons or businesses who sell
hemp-derived cannabinoid products. Said local regulations and ordinances include
but are not limited to local zoning and land use regulations, public health and safety
regulations, and business license requirements.

(c) Various public health organizations and entities note that the growing acceptance,
accessibility, and use of hemp-derived cannabinoid products containing low levels
of any type of THC, including THC products used for medical purposes, have
raised important public health concerns. There is a lack of aggregated knowledge
regarding possible negative health effects or dangers associated with hemp-derived
cannabinoid products that has led to uncertainty about the impact of its use.

(d) Fillmore County (hereinafter "the county") recognizes the risks that unintended
access and the use ofhemp-derived cannabinoid products present to the health,
welfare, and safety of youth in Fillmore County.

(e) The Minnesota Legislature recognized the risks of hemp-derived cannabinoid
product use among the public at large and youth when it limited THC potency and
serving size, enacted labeling requirements, required hemp-derived cannabinoid
products be packaged without appeal to children, and limited accessibility of said
products to individuals under the age of21.



(f) State law authorizes the Board ofPharmacy to adopt product and testing standards
in part to curb the illegal sale and distribution of hemp-derived cannabinoid
products and ensure the safety and compliance of commercially available hemp-
derived cannabinoid products in the state of Minnesota

(g) The county wishes to be proactive by making decisions and enacting regulations
that will mitigate any threat presented by the illegal sale and distribution of hemp-
derived cannabinoid products and reduce exposure ofyoung people to the
marketing and use of hemp-derived cannabinoid products. The County also wishes
to improve compliance among hemp-derived cannabinoid product retailers with
laws prohibiting the sale or marketing of hemp-derived cannabinoid products to
youth.

(h) The County also wishes to be proactive in protecting public health and safety by
regulating the marketing and sale of hemp-derived cannabinoid products containing
excessive amounts of THC, the marketing and sale of adulterated hemp-derived
cannabinoid products, the marketing and sale of hemp-derived cannabinoids which
may not be properly labeled or packaged, or other violations of Minn. Stat. Sec.
I51.72 which negatively impacts public health and safety.

(i) A local regulatory system for hemp-derived cannabinoid product retailers is
appropriate to ensure that retailers comply with hemp-derived cannabinoid product
laws and business standards which protect the health, safety, and welfare of all
Fillmore County residents and especially youth under the age of 2l.

(j) A requirement for a hemp-derived cannabinoid product retailer license will not
unduly burden the legitimate business activities of retailers or individuals who
sell or distribute hemp-derived cannabinoid products to adults. Licensing will
allow Fillmore county to regulate the operation of lawful businesses and
discourage violations of state and local laws related to hemp-derived
cannabinoid products.

(k) In making these findings and enacting this ordinance, it is the intent of the Fillmore
County Commissioners to ensure responsible hemp-derived cannabinoid product
retailing, allow legal sale and access, and discourage violations of hemp-derived
cannabinoid product-related laws, especially those which prohibit or discourage the
marketing, sale, or distribution of hemp-derived cannabinoid products to youth
under 21 years ofage.

SECTION 3. DNF'INITIONS.
Except as may otherwise be provided or clearly implied by context, all terms shall be given

their commonly accepted definitions. The following words, terms, and phrases, when used in this
ordinance, shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly
indicates a different meaning:

(a) Alcohol Retailers: provide alcohol under off-sale or on-sale licenses as defined by
Minnesota State Statute 3404.101

(b) Cannabinoids: are astructural class of naturally occurring chemical constituents found
in hemp or cannabis that may either be non-intoxicating or intoxicating.

(c) Cannabinoid Products: means products that contain any amount of either edible or
non-edible cannabinoid products, or both. The only cannabinoid products authorized for
sale and purchase under this ordinance are those cannabinoid products derived from
certified hemp or industrial hemp and which comply with the THC limits and other
requirements set forth in Minn. Stat. Sec. I51.72.



(d) Cannabinoid Store: means any premises primarily dedicated to the display, sale,
distribution, delivery, offering, furnishing, or marketing of edible and non-edible
cannabinoid products or paraphernalia; provided, however, that any other retail use that
only sells these cannabinoid products as an ancillary sale shall not be defined as a
"cannabinoid store."

(e) Certified Hemp: means hemp plants that have been tested and found to meet the
requirements of Minnesota Statutes Chapter 18K and the rules adopted thereunder

(t) Child Resistant Packaging: is designed or constructed to be significantly difficult for
children under five years of age to open, and not difficult for normal adults to use
properly. This packaging meets Code of Federal Regulations, title 16, section
1700.15(b), as in effect on January 1,2015, and was tested in accordance with the
method described in Code of Federal Regulations, title 16, section 1700.20, as in effect
on January 1,2075.

(g) coupon: allows customers to purchase goods or services at a reduced price.

(h) Compliance Checks: is the system the county or city uses to investigate and ensure that
those authorizedto sell licensed hemp-derived cannabinoid products are following and
complying with the requirements of this ordinance. Compliance checks may also be
conducted by the county or other units ofgovernment for educational, research, and
training purposes or for investigating or enforcing Tribal, federal, state, or local laws and

regulations relating to licensed products.

(i) Delivery Sale: means the sale of any cannabinoid product to any person for personal
consumption and not for resale when the sale is conducted by any means other than an
in-person, over-the-counter sales transaction in a cannabinoid retail establishment.
Delivery sale includes the sale of any cannabinoid product when the sale is conducted by
telephone, other voice transmission,mail, the internet, or app-based service. Delivery
sale includes delivery by licensees or third parties by any means, including curbside
pick-up.

(j) Edible Cannabinoid Product: Any product that is intended to be eaten or consumed
as a beverage by humans, contains a cannabinoid in combination with food
ingredients, and is not a drug. An edible cannabinoid product must not contain more
than five milligrams of any tetrahydrocannabinol in a single serving, or more than a
total of 50 milligrams of tetrahydrocannabinol per package and must comply with the
requirements of Minn. Stat. $ 151.72, as may be amended from time to time. "Edible
cannabinoid product" does not include medical cannabis as defined in Minn. Stat. $
752.22, Subd. 6, as may be amended from time to time.

(k) Exclusive Liquor Stores; An establishment that meets the definition of exclusive
liquor store in Minn. Stat.$ 3404.101, subd. 10.



(I) Hemp: has the meaning given in Minnesota Statute section l gK.02, Subd. 3, as

amended

(m)Hemp Derived Cannabinoid Products: means cannabinoid products (both edible and
non-edible cannabinoid products) which are derived from certified hemp or industrial
hemp and which comply with the THC limitations and other requirements of Minnesota
statute l5l.72.

(n) Intoxicating Cannabinoids: are chemicals, that when introduced into an animal or
human body, impair the central nervous system or impair the human audio, visual, or
mental processes. These cannabinoids inhibit a person's normal capacity to act or
reason.

(o) Label: A display of written, printed, or graphic matter upon the exterior of an
immediate product package. Any word, statement, or other information required by or
under the authority of Minnesota state Statute 151.72 to appear on the label.

(p) Licensed Child Care/Licensed Daycare: means an individual, corporation, partnership,
voluntary association, or other organization legally responsible for the operation of the
child care program that has been granted a license by the commissioner under Minnesota
Statutes Chaoter 245,4 and Minnesota Administrative Rule 9502

(q) Licensed Product: means hemp-derived cannabinoid products. A license must be
obtained from Fillmore County before a person, business or any other entity is allowed to
sell any hemp-derived cannabinoid product in Fillmore County

(r) Licensed Premises: The property, building, or land described in the approved license for
the sale of hemp-derived cannabinoid products. The sale of hemp-derived cannabinoid
products is limited to the licensed premises.

(s) Licensees: The individual, business, retail establishment, or other entity which has been
issued or possesses a license from Fillmore County that authorizes the sale of hemp-
derived cannabinoid products.

(t) Loosies: a single or individually packaged edible or non-edible cannabinoid product that
has been removed from its intended retail packaging and sold individually.

(u) Marijuana: has the meaning given in Minnesota Statute Section 152.01 Subd. 9, as

amended and means all parls of the plant of any species of the genus Cannabis, including
all agronomical varieties, whether growing or not; the seeds thereof; the resin extracted
from any part of such plant; and every compound, manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture,
or preparation of such plant, its seeds or resin, but shall not include the mature stalks of
such plant, fiber from such stalks, oil or cake made from the seeds ofsuch plant, any

other compound, manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture, or preparation of such mature
stalks, except the resin extracted therefrom, fiber, oil, or cake, or the sterilized seed of



such plant which is incapable of germination. Marijuana does not include hemp as

defined in section Minnesota State Statute 152.22 Subd. 5a. Marijuana sale is prohibited
under this ordinance.

(v) Manufacture: means the production, quality control, standardization, packaging, re-
packaging, tableting, encapsulating, labeling, or other processing ofedible and non-
edible cannabinoid products.

(w)Medical Cannabis: means any species of the genus cannabis plant, or any mixture or
preparation of them, including whole plant extracts and resins, and is delivered in the
form described in Minnesota State Stahlte 152.22 subdivision 6. Sale of medical
cannabis is regulated by the State of Minnesota. Edible and non-edible cannabinoid
products labeled as "medical cannabis" is prohibited under this ordinance.

(x) Moveable Place of Business: Any person, individual, corporation, business or other
entity which is operated out of a kiosk, truck, van, automobile, or other type of
vehicle or transportable shelter and not a fixed address storefront or other permanent
type of structure authorized for the sale of goods or sales transactions.

(y) Non-Edible Hemp Derived Cannabinoid Products: means all other cannabinoid
products regardless of route of administration which do not contain more than 0.3%o of
any or all naturally-occurring tetrahydrocannabinol (THC). Non-edible cannabinoid
products may include but are not limited to tablets, capsules, solutions, tinctures, or other
products meant for oral administration/ingestion; creams, lotions, ointments, salves, or
other products meant for topical administration; products meant to be inhaled, smoked,
vaped, sprayed into nostrils, or insufflated (sniffed); and hemp flowers and buds.

(z) Nonintoxicating Cannabinoid: means substances extracted from certified hemp plants
that do not produce intoxicating effects when consumed by any route of administration

(aa) Off-Sale: "Off-sale" is the sale of hemp-derived cannabinoid products in original
packages for consumption off licensed premises only.

(bb)On-Sale: "On-sale" is the sale of hemp-derived cannabinoid products for consumption
on the licensed premises only. Consumption may not include smoking or vaping as

defined by Minnesota Clean Indoor air Act (MCIAA) Minnesota State Statue 144.41 1 to
144.417.

(cc) Opaque: means, with respect to packaging or a container, that any product inside of
the packaging or container cannot be seen from outside the packaging or container.

(dd) Package: means any container or receptacle used for holding hemp-derived

cannabinoid products.



(ee) QR Code or Quick Response Code: means a matrix bar code that links to information
about a hemp-derived cannabinoid product.

(fl) Restaurant: means a food and beverage service establishment, whether the
establishment serves alcoholic or nonalcoholic beverages, which operates from a location
for more rhan2l days annually as defined under Minnesota state Statute
157.15. Restaurant does not include a food cart, mobile food unit, or moveable place of
business.

(gg) Retail Establishment: is any place of business where hemp-derived cannabinoid
products are available for sale to the general public. All retail establishments must be
licensed before they are allowed to sell hemp-derived cannabinoid products.

(hh) Sale/Sell means:

(1) To sell, give away, barler, deliver, exchange, distribute, or dispose of to another;
(2) To offer or agreeto perform an act listed in clause (I);
(3) To possess with intent to perform an act listed in clause (I).

(ii) Sample: A small quantity of a hemp-derived cannabinoid product exhibited as a
specimen of a larger quantity.

fij) School: Any public or private elementary, vocational, or secondary school, or a
public or private college or university.

(kk)Self-service Merchandising: Open displays of hemp-derived cannabinoid products
in any manner where any person has access to the hemp-derived cannabinoid products
without the assistance or intervention of the licensee or the licensee's employee.
Assistance or intervention means the actual physical exchange of the hemp-derived
cannabis product between the customer and the licensee or employee.

(II) Synthetic cannabinoid products: refer to manmade derivatives with a chemical
structure that is substantially similar to the chemical structure found in naturally-
occurring cannabinoids. CBD extract from certified hemp that is converted to delta-9-
THC is not considered a synthetic cannabinoid for the purposes of this ordinance. The
sale of Synthetic cannabinoid products is prohibited under this ordinance.

(mm) Tamper-Evident: is a one-time-use security tape or seal that is affixed to the opening
ofa package, allowing a person to recognize whether the package has obviously been

opened.

(nn)THC: Is the acronym for the cannabinoid tetrahydrocannabinol

(oo) Tobacco Store: shall mean any licensed premises primarily dedicated to the display,
sale, distribution, delivery, offering, furnishing, or marketing of tobacco, tobacco
products, ortobacco paraphernalia; provided, however, that any other retail use that only
sells tobacco products as an ancillary sale shall not be defined as a "tobacco store."



(pp)Vending Machine: Any mechanical, electric, or electronic, or other type of device that
dispenses hemp derived cannabinoid products upon the insertion of money, tokens, or
other form of payment directly into the machine by the person seeking to purchase the
licensed product.

SECTION 4. LTCF'NSN.

Subd. 1. License Required. No person, bar, restaurant, business or other entity shall sell,
offer to sell, or possess with intent to sell any hemp-derived cannabinoid product within
Fillmore County without first having obtained a license to do so from Fillmore County.

Subdo 2. Application. An application for a license to sell hemp-derived cannabinoid
products shall be made on a form provided by the County and shall be submitted to the
Fillmore County Auditor-Treasurer for processing. The application shall contain the full
name and date of birth of the applicant, the applicant's residential and business addresses
and telephone numbers, the name of the business for which the license is sought, and any
additional information the County deems necessary. A business applicant, at the time of
application, shall furnish the County with a list of all persons that have an interest of five
percent (5%o) or more in the business. The list shall name all owners and show the interest
held by each, either individually or beneficially for others. It is the duty of each business
licensee (license holder) to notify the County Auditor-Treasurer in writing of any change
in ownership in the business. If the County Auditor-Treasurer determines that an
application is incomplete, the County Auditor-Treasurer shall return the application to the
applicant with notice of the information necessary to make the application complete.

Subd. 3. Insurance. The application for a license to sell hemp-derived cannabinoid
products must include proof of business liability insurance. An individual, business or other
entity that is required to be licensed by this ordinance must have on file with the County
Auditor-Treasurer at all times current proof of business liability insurance. Failure to have
current business liability insurance is cause for revocation of a license to sell hemp-derived
cannabinoid products.

Subd. 4. Background Investigation. Upon receipt of a completed application for a license
to sell hemp-derived cannabinoid products, the Fillmore County Auditor-Treasurer shall
immediately forward a copy of the application to the Fillmore County Sheriffs' Office or
such other law enforcement agency as is designated to conduct an investigation of the
criminal background of the applicant. The background investigation shall examine all facts
or information, which is relevant to the question of the applicant's fitness to receive a license
and to perform the duties imposed by this ordinance. Upon completing the investigation and
background check, the Chief of Police, Sherifi or their designee will submit a written report
with his/her findings to the County Auditor-Treasurer, together with his/her recommendation
as to the issuance of a license to the applicant. The County Auditor-Treasurer will then forward
to the County Administrator the law enforcement background report, license application, proof
of insurance, and other relevant information or documents. These documents shall also include
a recommendation from the County Auditor-Treasurer as to whether the license should be
issued to the applicant.
Upon receipt of the background investigative report and the County Auditor-Treasurer's
recommendation, the Fillmore County Administrator shall forward all information to the
County Commissioners for consideration at a regularly scheduled meeting.



Any time that an additional background investigation is required because of a change of
ownership or control of a business, the licensee shall pay anadditional investigation fee to
be determined by the County. During the initial background investigation or any additional
background investigations, the County may at reasonable times examine the transfer
records and minutes of any books of any business licensee to verify and identify the
owners, and the County may examine the business records of any other licensee to the
extent necessary to disclose the interest which persons other than the licensee have in the
licensed business. The County Commissioners may revoke any license issued upon its
determination thal a change of ownership of a licensee has actually resulted in the change
of control of the licensed business so as to materially affect the integrity and character of
its management and operation, but no such action shall be taken until after ahearing by the
County Commissioners on notice to the licensee.

Subd. 5. Action. The Fillmore County Commissioners may either approve or deny the
application for a license, or it may delay action for a reasonable period of time as
necessary to complete further review of the application or investigation of the applicant.
lf the County Commissioners approve the license, the County Auditor-Treasurer shall
issue the license to the applicant. lf the Fillmore County Commissioners deny the license,
notice of the denial shall be given to the applicant along with notice of the applicant's
right to appeal. Appeals of any decision must be made within thirty (30) days of the
denial. lf a license application is denied, the earliest an applicant may reapply is i2
months from the date the license is denied.

Subd. 6. Term. All licenses issued under this ordinance shall be for a maximum period
of one year and shall expire on December 31 of each year. If an application is made
during the license year, the license fee may be pro-rated based on the number of whole
months left during that license year.

Subd.7. Revocation or Suspension.
(I) Any license issued under this ordinance may be revoked or suspended for failure of

the license holder to meet the conditions of Section 6 of this ordinance or comply
with any other requirements of this ordinance.

(2) If a license is mistakenly issued or renewed to a person or a business, it shall be
revoked upon the discovery that the person or business was ineligible for the license
under this chapter and the County shall provide the person or business with a notice
of revocation, along with information on the right to appeal.

(3) Any change in the ownership or control of a licensed business shall be deemed
equivalent to a transfer ofthe license, and any such license shall be revoked 30 days
after any such change in ownership or control unless the licensee has notified the
Fillmore County Auditor-Treasurer ofthe change in ownership by submitting a new
license application for the new owners, and the Fillmore County Commissioners
have approved the transfer of the license by appropriate action. Any time an
additional investigation is required because ofachange in ownership or control ofa
business, the licensee shall pay an additional investigation fee to be determined by
the County. The County may at any reasonable time examine the transfer records
and minute books of any business licensee to verify and identify the owners, and the
County may examine the business records of any other licensee to the extent
necessary to disclose the interest which persons other than the licensee have in the
licensed business. The County Commissioners may revoke any license issued upon



its determination that a change of ownership of a licensee has resulted in the change
of control of the licensed business so as materially to affect the integrity and
character of its management and its operation, but no such action shall be taken
until after a hearing by the county commissioners on notice to the licensee.

Subd. 8. Transfers. All licenses issued under this chapter shall only be valid for the
premises for which the license was issued and only for the person or business to whom
the license was issued. The transfer ofany license to another location, business, or person
is prohibited.

Subd. 9. Display Licenses and Signage. A11 licenses to sell hemp-derived cannabinoid
products shall be posted and displayed in plain view ofthe general public on the licensed
premises. Similarly, notice of the legal sales age, age verification requirement, and
product warnings must be posted prominently and in plain view at all times at each
location where hemp-derived cannabinoid products are offered for sale. The required
signage, which will be provided to the licensee by the county, must be posted in a
manner that is clearly visible to anyone who is or is considering making a purchase.

Subd. 10. Renewals. The renewal of a license issued under this article shall be handled in
the same manner as the original application. The request for a renewal shall be made at
least 30 days but no more than 60 days before the expiration of the current license.

Subd. 11. Issuance as Privilege and Not a Right. The issuance of a license issued under
this ordinance is a privilege and does not entitle the license holder to automatic renewal of
the license.

Subd. 12. Minimum Clerk Age. Individuals employed by a license holder for the sale of
hemp-derived cannabinoid products must be at least 18 years of age.

SECTION 5. F'EES.
No license for the sale of hemp-derived cannabinoid products shall be issued under this

ordinance until the appropriate license fee and background investigation fee have been paid in full.
The fees for a license and background check under this ordinance shall be established by the County
Commissioners and adopted in the County fee schedule and may be amended from time to time.

SECTION 6. NLIGIBILITY AND BASIS F'OR DENIAL OF'LICENSE.

Subd.1. Eligibility.
(D Moveable Place of Busizess No license forthe sale of hemp-derived cannabinoid

products shall be issued to a moveable place of business. Only fixed-location
businesses or retail establishments shall be eligible to receive an annual license
under this ordinance.

(2) Exclusive Liquor Store, No license to sell hemp-derived edible cannabinoid
products shall be issued to an exclusive liquor store as defined in Minn. Stat. $
340A.101, subd. 10.

(3) Business Liability Insurance Required, No license to sell hemp-derived edible
cannabinoid products shall be issued without proof of current business liability
lnsurance.

(4) Prohibited Areas. Licenses shall only be issued to premises located in an area
zoned for commercial or industrial activities. No licenses shall be issued in areas



zoned for residential or agricultural activities. Areas zoned as agricultural may only
receive a license to sell hemp derived cannabinoid products upon being re-zoned to
commercial or industrial and upon receipt of a conditional use permit.

(5) Proximity to Schools or licensed tlaycare facilities. No license shall be issued for a
premises within 250 feet of any school or licensed daycarellicensed childcare
facility. The 250-foot distance shall be measured by the shortest line from the
property line ofthe space to be occupied by the proposed licensee to the nearest
property line of the school or daycare facility. This restriction does not apply to an
existing license holder who has been licensed to sell licensed products in that same
location for at least one year before the date this section was enacted into law.

(6) Delinquent Taxes and Charges. No license to sell hemp-derived cannabinoid
Products shall be granted or renewed for operation on any premises on which taxes,
assessments, utility charges, service charges, or other financial claims of the State,
City or County are delinquent and unpaid. In the event an action has been commenced
pursuant to the provisions of Minn. Stat. ch. 278, as it may be amended from time to
time, questioning the amount or validity of taxes, the County Commissioners may,
on application by the licensee, waive strict compliance with this paragraph. No
waiver may be granted, however, for taxes or any portion thereof which remain
unpaid for a period exceeding one year after becoming due.

Subd. 2. Reasons for Denial of License. The reasons for denying the issuance or
renewal of a license under this ordinance include, but are not limited to, the following:
(1) The applicant is under the age of2l years.
(2) The applicant is prohibited by Federal, State, or other local law, ordinance, or other

regulation from holding a license.
(3) The applicant has been convicted within the past four years for any violation of a

Federal, State, local law, ordinance, or other regulation relating to the sale of edible
cannabinoid products, THC products, or controlled substances.

(4) The applicant has been convicted of a felony criminal offense and it has been less
than three (3) years since the applicant was discharged from probation or parole.

(5) The applicant is on probation for a gross misdemeanor or felony criminal offense.
(6) The applicant has had a license to sell edible cannabinoid products suspended or

revoked during the 36 months preceding the date of application, or the applicant has
or had an interest in another premises authorized to sell licensed products, whether
in the City or in another jurisdiction, that has had a license to sell licensed products
suspended or revoked during the same time period, provided the applicant had an
interest in the premises at the time of the revocation or suspension, or at the time of
the violation that led to the revocation or suspension.

(7) In the judgment of the Auditor-Treasurer, the applicant is not the real party in
interest or the actual owner of the business or entity to be licensed.

(8) The applicant is a business that does not have an operating officer or manager who
is eligible pursuant to the provisions ofthis chapter.

(9) The applicant fails to provide any information required on the application or
provides false or misleading information. Any false statement on an application, or
any willful omission of any information called for on such application form, shall
cause an automatic refusal ofa license, or ifalready issued, shall render any
license issued pursuant thereto void and ofno effect to protect the applicant from
prosecution for violation ofthis chapter, or any part thereof.

( I 0) The premises for which the license is sought has real estate taxes, assessments, or
other financial claims of the City, County, or of State are due, delinquent, or



unpaid. If an action has been commenced pursuant to the provisions of Minn. Stats.
Ch. 278, questioning the amount or validity of taxes, the County Commissioners
may, on application by the licensee, waive strict compliance with this provision; no
waiver may be granted, however, for taxes, or any portion thereof, which remain
unpaid for a period exceeding one year after becoming due unless such one-year
period is extended through no fault ofthe licensee.

(11) An applicant operates a moveable place of business. Only fixed-location retail
establishments are eligible to be licensed.

(12) An applicant whose licensed premises, building, orproperty is within 250 feet of a
school or licensed daycare.

(13) An applicant whose licensed premises, building, or property is not located within an
areathat is zoned commercial, or industrial. No licenses shall be issued in areas
zoned as residential or agricultural. Areas zoned as agricultural may only receive a
license upon being re-zoned to commercial or industrial and upon receipt of a
conditional use permit.

SECTION 7. F',I,IGIRII,ITY ANT} PROIDRITND ACTS.

Subd. 1. In general.
( I ) No person shall sell or offer to sell any hemp derived cannabinoid product:

(i) By means of any type of vending machine.
(iD By means of self-service merchandising.
(iii) By any other means, to any other person, on in any other manner or form

prohibited by this chapter, or by other state or other local law, ordinance
provision, or other regulation.

(iv) That is not in the original packaging with labeling in compliance with labeling
requirements of Minn. Stat. $151.72, subd. 5, as may be amended from time
to time.

(2) No person shall sell or offer for sale a hemp-derived cannabinoid product that does
not meet all the requirements of Minn. Stat. 9151.72, subd. 3., as may be amended
from time to time.

(3) No person shall be allowed to consume hemp-derived cannabinoid products in the
building or anywhere on the propefty of licensed premises with the exception of
the following businesses:

a. Restaurants, bars, and similar retail establishments with an on-sale liquor
license. These types of businesses and retail establishments which are licensed
to sell hemp-derived cannabinoid products may also allow consumption of
hemp-derived cannabinoid products that are purchased atthatrestaurant, bar, or
retail establishment. Products purchased off of the licensed premises cannot be
brought onto the premises and consumed. These licensed businesses or retail
establishments are still bound by all of the other requirements of this ordinance
which prohibit sale to patrons under the age of 21, require ID checks before
sale, prohibit self-service merchandising, prohibit loosies, prohibit samples, etc,

Subd. 2.Legal Age. No person shall sell any hemp-derived cannabinoid product to any
person under the age of21.
(I) Age VeriJication.Licensees shall verify by means of government-issued

Photographic identification-that-thepumhaser-is-at-least-2- I -years-of-agec--------
Verification is not required for a person over the age of 30. That the person



appeared to be 30 years ofage or older does not constitute a defense to a violation
of this subsection.

(2) Signage. Notice of the legal sales age and age verification requirement must be
posted prominently and in plain view at all times at each location where edible
cannabinoid products are offered for sale. The required signage, which will be
provided to the licensee by the County, must be posted in a manner that is clearly
visible to anyone who is or is considering making a purchase,

Subd. 3. Samples Prohibited. No person, business, or other entity shall distribute or
provide samples of any hemp-derived cannabinoid products free of charge or at a nominal
cost.

Subd. 4. Manufacturing or Production Prohibited. The manufacturing and production
of hemp derived cannabinoid products are not permitted.

Subd. 5. Delivery Sales Prohibited. All sales of hemp-derived cannabinoid products
must be conducted in person on the licensed premises in an over-the-counter sales
transaction. Delivery of hemp-derived cannabinoid products by the licensee, their
employees, or any other entity to an off-site location, residence, or location other than the
licensed premises is prohibited.

Subd. 6. Hours and Days of Sale. Hemp-derived cannabinoid products may be sold
only during the following days and hours:

a. Licensed restaurants, bars, businesses, or other licensed entities which are issued
an on-sale license that allows the consumption of hemp-derived cannabinoid
products on the licensed premises may sell hemp-derived cannabinoid products
only between the hours of 8:00 a.m. through 1:00 a.m. Monday through Saturday.
On Sundays, hemp-derived cannabinoid products may only be sold from l0:00
a.m. through l1:59 p.m.

b. Licensed businesses, individuals, or retailers which are issued an off-sale
license and are prohibited from allowing consumption of hemp-derived
cannabinoid products on the licensed premises may only sel1 hemp-derived
cannabinoid products between 8:00 a.m. and l0:00 p.m. Monday through
Sunday.

Subd. 7. Possession. Licensees shall not allow a person under the age of 2l other than an
employee who is working to be in possession of any hemp-derived cannabinoid product.

Subd. 8. Synthetic Cannabinoids Prohibited. Any substance which is determined to be
a synthetic cannabinoid is prohibited and may not be manufactured, possessed, or sold in
Fillmore County as part of this ordinance. CBD extract from certified hernp that is
converted to delta-9-THC is not considered a synthetic cannabinoid for the purposes of
this ordinance.

Subd. 9. Loosies are Prohibited. Loosies are prohibited and cannot be sold.

Subd. 10. Liability Insurance Required. Failure to have current business liability
insurance is caused by denial of an initial application for a license to sell hemp-derived
cannabinoid products or for revocation of a license to sell hemp-derived cannabinoid
products.



Subd. 11. Temporary Licenses to sell Hemp Derived Cannabinoid Products are
Prohibited. No temporary licenses to sell hemp-derived cannabinoid products shall be
issued or allowed. Licenses shall only be for a period of one ( 1) year or the remainder of a
year if an application is submitted during the calendar year.

Subd. 12. Cooperation with Compliance Checks. All licensees and their employees must
cooperate with compliance checks under this ordinance. Failure or refusal to cooperate with
compliance checks is good cause fot revoking or denying licenses to sell hemp-derived
cannabinoids under this ordinance

SECTION 8. STORAGE REOUIREMENTS.

All hemp-derived cannabinoid products shall either be stored behind a counter or other
area not freely accessible to customers, or in a case or other storage unit not left open and
accessible to the general public. A licensee is not allowed to sell hemp-derived cannabinoid
products in open displays that are accessible to the public without the intervention or
involvement of the license holder's employee

SECTION 9. RF"SPONSIRTI,ITY.
All licensees are responsible for the actions of their employees in regard to the sale, offer to

sell, and furnishing of hemp-derived cannabinoid products on the licensed premises. The sale, offer
to sell, or furnishing of any hemp-derived cannabinoid product by an employee shall be considered
an act of the licensee. Nothing in this section shall be construed as prohibiting the County from also
subjecting the employee to any civil penalties that the County deems to be appropriate under this
ordinance, state or federal law, or other applicable law or regulation.

SECTION 10. COMPI,IANCF' CHF'CKS AND INSPF',CTIONS.
All premises licensed under this ordinance shall be open to inspection by the County or their

agents or employees during regular business hours. From time to time, the Fillmore County
Sheriff s Office shall conduct compliance checks.

No person used in compliance checks shall attempt to use a false identification
misrepresenting their age. All persons lawfully engaged in a compliance check shall answer all
questions about their age asked by the licensee or their employee, and produce any identification, if
any exists, for which they are asked. The Count will conduct a compliance check that involves the
participation of a person at least I 8 years of age, but under the age of 2l to enter the licensed
premises to attempt to purchase the edible cannabinoid products. Persons used for the purpose of
compliance checks shall be supervised by law enforcement or other designated personnel. Nothing
in this chapter shall prohibit compliance checks authorized by state or federal laws for educational,
research, or training purposes, or required for the enforcement of a particular State or Federal law.
Additionally, from time to time, the County will conduct inspections to determine compliance with
any or all other aspects ofthis chapter.

All licensees and their employees must cooperate with compliance checks under this
ordinance. Failure or refusal to cooperate with compliance checks is good cause for revoking or
denying licenses to sell hemp-derived cannabinoids under this ordinance

SECTION 11. VIOI,ATIONS ANN PF',NAI,TIF',S.

Subd. I Criminal Penalty. A violation of this ordinance shall be a misdemeanor.
Nothing in this chapter prohibits the County from seeking prosecution as a misdemeanor
for an alleged violation ofthis chapter.



Subd. 2. Administrative Penalty. If a licensee or an employee of a licensee is found to
have violated this article, the licensee shall also be charged an administrative penalty and
be subject to suspension or revocation of their license to sell hemp-derived cannabinoid
products as follows:
(1) First Violation. The County Commissioners shall impose a civil penalty of$400.00

and suspend the license for not less than 1 0 days or more than 30 days.
(2) Second Violution lltithin 60 Months, The County Commissioners shall impose a

civil penalty of$1,000.00 and suspend the license for not less than 30 consecutive
days.

(3) Third Violation l(ithin 60 Months. The County Commissioners shall impose a
civil penalty of$1,500.00 and revoke the license for not less than 90 days.

(4) Fourth Violation lfithin 60 Months. The County Commissioners shall revoke the
license for at least three years and impose a $2,000.00 civil penalty.

Subd. 3. Training in lieu of suspension. lf the first violation is for serving an individual
under the age of 21, a licensee may request training from the Fillmore County Sheriff s
Office in proper identification procedures. Said training shall be at the expense of the
licensee, may be in lieu of the entire license suspension for a first violation, and shall be
conducted per the following conditions:
(1) Training for all employees of a licensee must be completed within two training

sessions at the discretion of the Fillmore County Sheriffs' Office.
(2) lf more than one licensee is requesting the training, the Fillmore County Sheriffs

Office retains control in deciding how many training sessions are necessary to
accommodate the number of employees taking the training.

(3) It shall be the responsibility of the licensee to make certain that all employees
successfully complete the required training. Failure to do so means the licensee has
failed to meet the "training in lieu of suspension" requirement of the administrative
penalty and will be subject to the entire license suspension.

(4) The licensee shall pay for all of the following costs for the training: supplies and
materials, any facility costs, the personnel expenses for the trainer, all
administrative costs of the training, and any other costs staff deems necessary to
conduct the training. Payment for the training must be made to the county
Administrator prior to the commencement of the training. Failure to make the
payment will result in the cancellation of the training and the immediate imposition
of the appropriate license suspension.

Subd. 4. Administrative Penalty Procedures. No penalty shall take effect until the
licensee has received notice by United States mail of the alleged violation and of the
opportunity for a hearing before the County Commissioners, and such notice must be in
writing and must provide that a right to a hearing before the County Commissioners must
be requested within 10 business days of receipt of the notice or such right shall terminate.

Subd. 5. Suspension and Revocation. In addition to any other penalty imposed under
this ordinance, any license issued under this section may be suspended or revoked by the
County Commissioners for a violation of any provision of this chapter if the licensee has
been given a reasonable notice and an opportunity to be heard.



Subd. 6. Appeal. Any appeal of the decision of the County Commissioners to impose a
civil penalty must be made within thirty (30) days of the decision of the county
Commissioners.

SECTION 12. FEE SCHEDULE.
The Fillmore County Fee Schedule shall be amended to include the following annual license

fee and background investigation fee for hemp-derived cannabinoid products:

Annual Fee: On-Sale Hemo Derived Cannabinoid License $1.000.00
(Allows consumption on licensed premises)

Off-Sale Hemp Derived Cannabinoid License $700.00
(Prohibits consumption on licensed premises)

Background Investigation Fee: $300,00

SECTION 13. SEVERARILITY.
lf any section or provision of this ordinance is held invalid, such invalidity will not affect other
sections or provisions that can be given force and effect without the invalidated section or
provision.

SECTION 14. COORIUNATION WTTH CITY ORDINANCES
lf a city located in Fillmore County has enacted or enacts a hemp-derived

Cannabinoid product ordinance or similar ordinance for the purpose of regulating the sale of
Hemp-derived cannabinoid products, that city ordinance shall preempt and supersede the

Fillmore County ordinance so as to control the sale of hemp-derived cannabinoid products within
that city. The city ordinance may only preempt and supersede the county ordinance as long as it

is not less restrictive and as long as both the county and city enact resolutions approving the
enactment and effective date for said city ordinance. Each city may implement their own fee

schedule for licensing and other fees irrespective of the county fee schedule.

SECTION 15. EEFECTIVE DATE.
This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage on July I,2023, and
publications as required by law.

SECTION 16. SUMMARY PURI CATION.
The following summary clearly informs the public of the intent and effect of the ordinance and is
approved for publication:

SUMMARY FOR PUBLICATION FILLMORE COUNTY ORDINANCE NO. 20230523-
CANNABINOID

AN ORDINANCE REGULATING HEMP-DERIVED CANNABINOID PRODUCTS

The above-referenced Ordinance is adopted for the purpose ofprotecting public health and safety
by regulating hemp-derived cannabinoid products within the County. A printed copy of the entire
Ordinance is available for inspection online at:
httos://www.co.fillmore.mn.us/government/ordinances.oho or at the Fillmore County

-Administrator's 
Office located at l0l Fillmore Street Preston, Minnesota, 55965 Bobbie Hillery,

Fillmore County Administrator.



ADOPTED by the Fillmore County Board of Commissioners this 23rd day of May,Z)Z3

'any
ATTESTED:

&dilfur" ',r.
Bobbie Hillery, Fill m ore County (Adrnin i strator)

Published in the Fillmore Countv Journal on Monday June 5th, 2023



I, Bobbie Hillery, Fillmore County Administrator, do hereby certifu that this is atrue and colTect
transcript of the resolution that was adopted at a meeting held on the 23rd day of May , 2023, the
original of which is on file in this office. I further certifu that the following Commissioners were
present and voted in favor of this resolution: LatTy Hindt, Duane Bakke, Marc Prestby, Randy
Dahl, and Mitch Lentz.

Date: S 23 Signed:


